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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if anyone has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we will not be interrupted. And also please speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd also like to mention that all Members of the Board have visited each of the sites that we will be discussing this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY


ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 



BRIAN MOORE



1936 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(12-1-16) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum height of an accessory structure to build a detached garage with second floor storage.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant Brian Moore.               

Ms. Gennarelli: For tonight's applications all of the Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 15th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, March 16th. This applicant sent out twenty registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: And for the record if you would state your name and your request.

Mr. Moore: My name is Brian Moore and I am requesting a variance to build a garage structure in excess of the fifteen-foot height requirement. It is to be 22 feet high and it also to replace an existing structure, which has been on my property for quite a long time, a total of the time we’ve owned the property. So essentially it is the same height as the existing structure and it will be used for pretty much the same purposes. The original structure is barn construction; the new structure will be a garage construction. 

Chairperson Cardone: You say the height will be the same as the current structure?

Mr. Moore: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And the size is approximately the same?

Mr. Moore: The size is somewhat larger. The existing structure is 24 x 24; the new structure will be 24 x 32.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: The reason for the height.

Mr. Moore: Essentially I use the upstairs for storage and I’ve used it for that purpose the whole time that I’ve had the property.

Mr. Hughes: So you are going to have eleven feet on each floor up to the roofline?

Mr. Moore: Nine feet on the first floor, eight feet on the second floor plus the additional space for the eaves. 

Mr. Hughes: No water or sewer or anything out there?

Mr. Moore: No water, no sewer.

Mr. Hughes: Electric? 

Mr. Moore: Yes, there will be electric. 

Ms. Drake: What’s this existing shed used for what type of storage?

Mr. Moore: It has one…provision for one vehicle downstairs and upstairs is storage. I’ve had some…used some tools out there…woodworking tools. The existing structure is badly in disrepair it even in twenty-five years that I’ve owned the property it’s even when we purchased the property it had already advanced rot and most of the timbers so…and we knew sooner or later we would be replacing it.       

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning and that is Local Determination.

Mr. Hughes: What do you have there an acre of land?

Mr. Moore: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: There’s a discrepancy on your package and it was confusing. One reference was 29,000 sq. ft. the other was 42,000 sq. ft.

Mr. Moore: On the acreage?

Mr. Hughes: The 42,000 sq. ft. would be more close to an acre than the other one and so you’re increasing the length of it by 8 feet and you’re keeping the same height by putting this…so you’re replacing it on the same footprint so to speak?

Mr. Moore: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just wanted to clarify that because it was confusing and you’ll see it on the chart. You’ll see your survey marks it its over 40,000 sq. ft. You’re survey says 42,500. Your application says 29,000. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public?

No response.
Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Moore: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:08 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011   (Resumption for decision: 8:22 PM) 



BRIAN MOORE



1936 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(12-1-16) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum height of an accessory structure to build a detached garage with second floor storage.  

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Brian Moore seeking an area variance for the maximum height of an accessory structure to build a detached garage with second floor storage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: Well he is replacing what he has there with a new building and it’s going to be a big improvement and the looks of the building that’s there. 

Mr. Maher: And there’s no water or sewage going to it so its obviously going to be used for storage only. I’d be inclined to make a motion for approval. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 8:24 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:08 PM) 



JOHN ARGIROS



5500 ROUTE 9W, MARLBORO







(8-2-27.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to enlarge an existing diner. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant John Argiros.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Please identify yourself for the record.

Mr. May: My name is Charles May. We are the site engineers for the Hudson Diner. The Hudson Diner as you may know is located on Route 9W. It’s approximately eight miles north of the Intersection of 84 and 9. We are here this evening to request an area variance and the a…the owner of the diner has requested that…this is the layout of the existing diner which has been in effect for more than approximately thirty-three years and now the owner would like to put an addition on the…on the restaurant of 960 sq. ft. The addition is located in this area. The addition will be utilized as a…as a dining area for family gatherings. A…here for example it would be some gatherings for a…birthday parties or family gatherings on Sunday or a Saturday afternoons. The…the proposal is a 960 sq. ft. addition. We request an area variance of approximately 11-feet.       

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I…I have several. You’re the engineer Mr. May?

Mr. May: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: If I can refer you to your blueprint of proposal SL-1. It shows what appears to be flood line plains in the diner’s parking lot, underneath the corner of the diner and it goes from 156 at the bottom of the stream to 160 to the middle of the parking lot. You see the northeast corner of the existing diner?

Mr. May: Where are you?

Mr. Hughes: Right here, the northeast corner of the existing diner.

Mr. May: O.K. right here?

Mr. Hughes: You see that line that goes through there?

Mr. May: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: With a topo of 160?

Mr. May: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: On the other side of the stream to 162 it’s counterpart or the 160 it’s counterpart. 

Mr. May: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: The stream goes right behind the fence there. Is that the floodplain that’s designated by that 160 mark?

Mr. May: I wouldn’t believe that it would be because this elevation this is a 160, there’s a 158 which is behind it and the a…I believe the floodplain would be behind the actual restaurant itself. And it appears to be just looking at it there’s enough elevation where I don’t consider that to be a flood area but we can check into it.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well maybe my question wasn’t specific enough. I don’t know if you refer to it as a flood area but to me it looks like it’s the outline of the foam or what goes on through there. Now I have several questions because I’ve read the packet twice to try to figure out what it was I was missing. Is the owner of the property Mr. Argiros or Mr. Doufekias? 

Mr. May: Mr. Argiros.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. And in the report that came down from the Planning Board and I see you were there last year and again this year. It refers to an existing sewage disposal system on the 9W side of the property and that the property next door is reportedly owned by a Mr. Doufekias or Mr. Argiros depending on whose print you read. Is this same man the same owner of the property next door?

Mr. May: Well I know that he owns the restaurant. 

Mr. Hughes: And, I see a guy that I been referred to as Mr. Argiros in the audience. Are you the…are you the owner of these properties, sir? 

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: You are Mr. Argiros?

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Now I’m really confused because they told me the guy next to you was Mr. Argiros. Are you Mr. Argiros?

Audience Member: It’s him. 

Mr. Hughes: He is? 

Mr. Argiros: Yes. I am.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: He is, O.K. well that’s your business. I’m working more concerned about the separation of properties while we have a chance here to make the real legitimate. You’re dining room that you’re talking about expanding with is fifty-five people more. You’re septic system is a subsurface septic system right close to an historic creek and its not two hundred feet away and I’d like to know what you are going to do the expansion of that. I’ve read the minutes from both Planning Board meetings and there a slight reference to it there. I believe you did most of the speaking and to me this would be the time to make sure that those two properties were joined and a proper septic system was put in to accommodate this need. You’re talking about installing tanks on the same property and pumping it out on a daily basis at off hour times or something. That’s not a very good health issue and it’s not real appetizing to run in the parking lot of a diner as well. So there’s a lot of things that I read between the Planning Board minutes and this plan and Mr. May’s narrative as well and I read something else too where the Planning Board chose to waive the Public Hearing which I can’t imagine. This is septic, this is wells, there is no Town water in this part of Town to serve the adjacent properties on either side of 9W in that surrounding area and I’m quite concerned about this. To me this isn’t just a variance for the setback on the front of this building. There’s a lot other questions that need to be answered from where I sit before I’d be satisfied that I had enough information to rule on this. This just isn’t because you’re only 45 feet from the road. 

Mr. May: Well just in…to respond to some of your questions of course we are now going to be dealing with the Orange County Health Department which has purview over the sewage disposal system in this particular location. Once we have…as a matter of fact we’ve already been in communication with the Orange County Health Department and there are a couple of means that we are going to be utilizing in order to be able to provide a satisfactory septic system.

Mr. Hughes: So then I guess my questions, I’ll review them. Are you willing to join that as one property Mr. Argiros to accommodate the need of the septic situation?   

Ms. Gennarelli: You are going to have to give him the microphone if he is going to speak or we can give him the other microphone.

Mr. May: Let me…let me just respond to that because a…we have…we have some alternatives. One alternative that we are discussing with the Orange County Health Department is to actually store our sewage in a large tank and what we will do is we will discharge into or dose into the existing system during off peak hours. The restaurant is not open 24 hours a day as you may know its probably about 14 hours a day so I’ve already been in communication with the Orange County Health Department to present that plan to them. However we wanted to get a variance first before we went to the Orange County Health Department so that we could then address that issue with the Orange County Health Department who, once approved, we then go back to Planning Board to get our final approval from the Planning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: I’ve read all the minutes of both the Planning Board meetings and to me it was just unsatisfactory to get it to this precipice and ask for a variance to proceed further with something that I think is unbefitting.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I would like to know if he would like to respond to my questions or are you satisfied with what he told me?

Mr. Argiros: Yes I’m satisfied.

Mr. Hughes: You are? So are you willing to join that land to this that you can make something that will work?      

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I’d like to make a note of this on the record and to be sent back…

Mr. Donovan: A…I’m sorry, go ahead you are the Chair.

Chairperson Cardone: No go ahead.

Mr. Donovan: If I can…I…satisfy myself in terms of the reason you’re here tonight and I looked at the Planning Board minutes and they talked about whether or not you needed a variance for lot coverage as well as the front yard setback and you’re here for front yard setback. I don’t see a zoning legend on the map so you are not asking for…for lot…

Mr. May: It is my understanding we are not asking for lot coverage. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. May: That was quite explicit in the attorney’s a…response letter what we are looking for is merely an area variance.

Mr. Donovan: Well an area variance for the a…front yard setback or increasing the degree of the non-conformity. Correct?

Mr. May: That is correct.

Mr. Donovan: And that…that really is the only issue that’s in front of the Board. As always, there’s a myriad of issues and things when they come to us that may be cause a Board Member’s concern but the issue in front of the Board tonight is the front yard setback with the increase in the degree of the non-conformity by the construction…as a result of the construction of the addition. 

Mr. Manley: You had just mentioned that an attorney advised you that you did not need a lot surface variance. Which attorney was that if I may ask?

Mr. May: It was by the Planning Board attorney.

Mr. Manley: Would that…?

Mr. May: Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Manley: That would have been Mr. Donnelly?

Mr. May: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, my…my much better looking partner but and I did speak to him today because I see a…with the Chairman there was a discussion amongst the Board, the Planning Board, my partner Mr. Donnelly, the planner Mr. Cox and on page 30 of the minutes of the Planning Board, Chairman Ewasutyn indicated lot coverage and front yard setbacks, which Mr. Donnelly responded yes but that was at the February 3rd meeting. In the February 8th meeting that Mr. Donnelly wrote to this Board he said, he stated as follows: The Planning Board refers this matter to you for consideration of a variance increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to allow the enlargement of the diner. So I just wanted to clarify that I don’t know what transpired between the Planning Board meeting of February 3rd and Mr. Donnelly’s letter of February 8th but what we have in front of us now is a front yard setback for increasing the degree of non-conformity. Jerry, do you have any…any enlightenment that you can shed on this issue?

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh. The area of the proposed addition to the south covers existing blacktop area, which that’s already covered and that’s why there’s no increase in the lot coverage. It’s currently parking spaces and sidewalk and which when you figure lot coverage and your Bulk Use Requirements that’s taken into consideration. So that’s why there was no increase in a…lot coverage because the addition goes over what’s already blacktopped and sidewalks. 

Mr. Donovan: Thank you because I should indicate that I did ask Mike and he didn’t remember. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Do we have any questions from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:21 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:24 PM) 



JOHN ARGIROS



5500 ROUTE 9W, MARLBORO







(8-2-27.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to enlarge an existing diner. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of John Argiros seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to enlarge an existing diner. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. Hughes: I have a question for counsel if I may? 

Chairperson Cardone: Before that question I would like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning which is Local Determination. O.K. go ahead Mr. Hughes. 

Mr. Hughes: I just want to make sure we have the right cast of characters here and that the owner in fact is agreeable to what we discussed on the record and that he has authorized someone here John Agiros to speak at this so counsel would you review all those documents to make sure we’re talking to the right people so we can proceed forward?

Mr. Donovan: Well Mr. May is present this evening on behalf of Mr. Argiros. Mr. Argiros has signed the application. Is that correct?

Mr. Argiros: That’s correct.

Mr. Donovan: And…

Mr. Hughes: And you are Mr. Argiros?

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. and you are the owner of both properties?

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: I should note for the record that there was a discussion held, several communications between my office and the Zoning Board Clerk (Secretary) Betty Gennarelli because there was some issue regarding the spelling of the applicant’s name. We do have a name affidavit that has been submitted because it was spelled one way on one document, another way in another document so if you will look in your packet you will see an also known as affidavit which I have reviewed and approved before this matter was placed on the agenda this evening. So to the extent I can be satisfied I’m satisfied. 

Mr. Hughes: I must have missed something. You work…you live on Wiley Road?

Mr. Argiros: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Any further discussion? 

Mr. Hughes: I would prefer that counsel make the notes of the things that were discussed here pertinent to the owner’s agreeance to adding both the properties together for the purpose of maintaining a sewer system whether they are allowed to put the tanks in with the Planning Board or not we need to look now to reserve that.

Mr. Donovan: Well I’m not sure if that was the position of the Board or a position just advanced by one member of the Board. I don’t know and as we discussed during the period in which this matter was heard the issue before the Board is the increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback. 

Mr. Hughes: Well I read the minutes of the hearings and its very vague and ambiguous what’s really decided so I don’t feel comfortable with it. Maybe I am the only member that sees it that way but I…I don’t know if the other members have read the minutes to the Planning Board meeting.

Chairperson Cardone: I think we’ve all read them.

Mr. Manley: Well as far as the property goes it…its really consistent with what is already in the neighborhood a…there hasn’t been any input at all from any of the people that have properties in the area to negatively impact the a…their properties. The issues that you raise although they might be legitimate concerns are within the purview of the Planning Board and as much as they might be a concern we have to hope that the Planning Board reviews those items and makes sure that they are a…addressed.

Mr. Maher: And the only other question that was raised was the lot coverage and obviously Mr. Canfield clarified the issue there.

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I'll make a motion for approval.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Drake: I'll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:28 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:21 PM) 



ANGELO & BETH LALLIS


220 VALLEY AVENUE, WALDEN







(32-3-23) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the combined side yards setback, increasing the degree of non-conformity of one side yard setback and the maximum allowed lot building coverage to build a second story and breezeway additions on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Angelo and Beth Lallis               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-five registered letters, twenty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Lallis: Good evening. Here to request an area variance for a second floor addition and to join the garage with the existing house. 

Mr. Hughes: You guys were here before weren’t you for something?

Mr. Lallis: No, this is the first time. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Maher: Currently…currently the house and the…and the garage are connected now? There is a small roof between them?

Mr. Lallis: Yes there is a small roof in between them. I’d like to enclose it to the point where it’s weather resistant. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you own the two tax parcels adjacent to your property as well?

Mr. Lallis: Yes, I do.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that’s where I was confused. A…so they’re only twenty-five feet wide?

Mr. Lallis: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: Both of them are twenty-five feet wide?

Mr. Lallis: The two vacant lots, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So you have fifty feet there?

Mr. Lallis: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: I’ve reviewed the percentage of the overages on your numbers and they are way over, they’re like 100% and 93% and the coverage and the non-conformity and the increasing of the non-conformity. There’s a way to reduce those numbers significantly by joining those two lots and making it one lot. And one of the five points that you need to meet is if there is another way you can achieve reducing the area variance you are requesting that is beneficial, I mean, obviously you wouldn’t want another neighbor there anyway would you?

Mr. Lallis: No, probably not.

Mr. Hughes: I just want to bring that to your attention and so the Board knows and the public knows as well I know both of these people before children and after children so I’m not going to rule on this. I’m just bringing it to the Board’s attention and to their attention that there is another way that you might reduce these numbers significantly by looking at joining all those lots together. That’s all I’ll say about this particular project. I hope you don’t mind me recusing myself.

Mr. Donovan: Generally when people recuse themselves they recuse themselves.

Mr. Hughes: Well I wanted to bring that to the attention for information for both the public…

Mr. Donovan: But after you got your two cents in.

Mr. Hughes: Well of course, you don’t think I am going to miss an opportunity do you? So our human calculator here can probably tell us in about twelve seconds what the new numbers are and I’m presuming that’s what he is working on.

Mr. Maher: And actually, no. I’m looking at it obviously, they’re going up not out. 

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Maher: So in essence they’re not increasing in any way but…

Mr. Hughes: But the coverage and the other stuff, there’s a lot of factors in there you can chisel it…

Mr. Maher: No, I understand.

Mr. Hughes: …way down.

Chairperson Cardone: And they also have two front yards…that’s a factor. 

Mr. Hughes: Three, no. Oh no they don’t.

Chairperson Cardone: Two. 

Mr. Hughes: On the side.

Mr. Maher: Well they only have two if they combine the lots. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: The plan shows a septic area, is that your septic area that’s partial on your lot and the next-door lot?

Mr. Lallis: That is correct.  

Mr. Hughes: And there were some dots here that showed a lot of wells and stuff. Do you know where all the other things are around you? Septics and wells? Keep chuckling there. I forgot to mention.

Chairperson Cardone: You are a challenge to our attorney.

Mr. Hughes: I am a challenge to everything.

Mr. Maher: And this is recusing himself.

Mr. Donovan: I can just imagine if he could participate. 

Mr. Hughes: Carry on.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board? 

Mr. Donovan: If I could just for clarification here, the portion of the survey that you have shows an easement I just want to be clear that that easement is…well it’s a question. Is it for the septic area and for the house encroachment on the neighboring property?

Mr. Lallis: Yes it is. 

Mr. Donovan: It covers both of those things?

Mr. Lallis: Yes. I have a copy of that if you need to see that I can submit it.

Mr. Donovan: I’ll take your word, thanks.

Ms. Drake: Are you installing any bedrooms in the upstairs? Increasing the number of bedrooms in the house?

Mr. Lallis: No it would be the three bedrooms total.

Ms. Drake: Its three bedrooms now and its staying three bedrooms?

Ms. Lallis: Basically we have no dining room really, very small, so I want to knock down the one wall downstairs where there is technically a bedroom in order to make my dining room bigger. So then, when you add in the new bedrooms it will still be the same. 

Ms. Drake: And could you just state for the record who you are?

Ms. Lallis: Beth Lallis.

Ms. Drake: Thank you. Thank you for answering that.  

Chairperson Cardone: Is there a reason why you don’t combine the lots?

Mr. Lallis: I have no reason if it’s for the best interest to join them then I have no problem doing that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?  Do we have any other questions from the Board?  And I will read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning, which is Local Determination.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Lallis: Thank you. 
(Time Noted – 7:28 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:28 PM) 



ANGELO & BETH LALLIS


220 VALLEY AVENUE, WALDEN







(32-3-23) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the combined side yards setback, increasing the degree of non-conformity of one side yard setback and the maximum allowed lot building coverage to build a second story and breezeway additions on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Angelo and Beth Lallis seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the combined side yards setback, increasing the degree of non-conformity of one side yard setback and the maximum allowed lot building coverage to build a second story and breezeway addition. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Maher: Just a…one note, if in fact the applicant is willing to combine the lots the building coverage percentage over goes from 101 to approximately 21% so it’s a significant difference.

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the application with a condition that they combine all three lots together to reduce that lot coverage area.

Mr. Maher: I'll second.

Mr. Donovan: I think the Chair’s question is do they need to go to the Planning Board? And I believe that that’s not…it’s a separate tax parcel. I believe the assessor can combine them upon request.

Mr. Hughes: They can do it right in the assessor’s office and customarily have done so unless it’s a huge project. 

Mr. Manley: The problem would be if they wanted to separate it at some point…

Chairperson Cardone: You’re right.    

Mr. Manley: …then they would have to go for a lot line change.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, and…

Mr. Maher: I don’t believe that they would be allowed to with the fact that it’s non-conforming.

Mr. Hughes: You don’t have enough square footage.

Mr. Maher: You couldn’t with a non-conforming lot.

Mr. Donovan: But they’d have to come back here.

Mr. Maher: Right.

Ms. Drake: And my other question is do they have to do that…show the combined lots before they can get the Building Permit or would we condition it based on a time frame that…?

Mr. Donovan: I would suggest that if you want to make that a condition you make them do that before they get the Building Permit otherwise…isn’t that another application we had recently?  Where someone gave their word to the Building Department and then kind of double dealed? Editorializing of course but…

Ms. Drake: O.K. that’s the motion then.

Mr. Hughes: So counsel do we need to write a note to them to tell them they have to call the assessor to do so.

Mr. Donovan: It will be in the resolution of approval.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

Chairperson Cardone: Did we have?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, Brenda is the first Michael is the second.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. 

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry Mr. Canfield has a question.

Mr. Canfield: Just one question on that one a…you will probably need a new sheet from our department with the correct variances on it then? 

Mr. Maher: As far as the lot coverage.

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Maher: In actuality then they will increase the a…it will lessen the degree of non-conformity of the side yard also so…

Mr. Canfield: But so we have an accurate on file of what the variances were actually for.

Mr. Donovan: Sure, yes. 
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(103-3-5) R-2

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Sharon Hokanson (Van Dalinda).               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-thirty registered letters, twenty-six were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Good evening everybody, my name is Allan Van Dalinda. My wife Sharon and I are looking for a variance to build a deck. 

Mr. Maher: The current concrete patio will that remain there? 

Mr. Van Dalinda: The current what?

Mr. Maher: The concrete patio, the concrete area...

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes. 

Mr. Maher: …that will remain? 

Mr. Van Dalinda: Absolutely.

Mr. Maher: And you’re basically going no further out than that just (inaudible)?

Mr. Van Dalinda: No. 16 x 24. 

Ms. Eaton: 16.6 x 24?

Mr. Van Dalinda: 16.6 x 24.

Ms. Eaton: I see on a Disapproval from the Building Permit it was 27.6 x 20.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes maam, I since…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just get a little closer to the mic?

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes maam, I since basically redesigned since a year and a half ago when we originally applied. I made it smaller, the costs and easier to build.

Ms. Eaton: It’s kind of steep right there with your…

Mr. Van Dalinda: It is.

Ms. Eaton: …yard.  

Mr. Van Dalinda: It is. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public?

Mr. Maher: Originally it was proposed to go how far out from the house? 20-feet out?

Mr. Van Dalinda: No originally, originally I was going to have a rectangle deck and then in the center out I was going to have like an alcove and a…then I was going to need more footings and more everything and I just…forget the alcove just make a basic rectangle deck. So that’s…that’s why it was closer to the property line so…so I just said forget it we’ll just make a regular rectangle deck it’s a lot easier. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: The location of that deck there, could you slide anyway along the back of the house and still get out on to it? I don’t know where your door is going to be to that deck.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Which door? The back door?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, out onto the deck.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Oh, we’re going to have a sliding glass door.

Mr. Hughes: Is it going to be on this part of the building?

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes, that’s the dining room, that’s the back wall of the dining room.

Mr. Hughes: So you could reduce the request for this variance of your offset if you move that deck a little bit you’ll get that much more off the fence line.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Not really because the variance is from the left corner looking out of the deck to the property line. I’d still have to put it against that side of the house, the Estate side of the house because of the door being there.

Mr. Maher: So the door is going towards the corner of the building towards the Estate side of the corner?

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So if you took that whole deck and brought it this way you’re bringing that corner over here you’re increasing your footage off the back line. Your property is…the forty-foot offset is the problem, right?  

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Then do you follow what I’m getting at now? Do you want to take a look? 

Mr. Van Dalinda: Sure. 

Mr. Hughes: Come here.

Ms. Drake: Why don’t you take the microphone with you?

Mr. Hughes: If you move this corner this way, you see you’re increasing.

Mr. Van Dalinda: That’s the deck that would be where the sliding glass door is, that’s the house and that’s the corner of the house. So then if I slide it this way, the door…where am I going to put the door?

Mr. Hughes: You’ll only have four feet, yeah.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Yeah, I don’t have enough room.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board?  

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Van Dalinda: Does that a…I can do it now?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Chairperson Cardone: No that means we closed the Public Hearing.

Mr. Donovan: What happens is we hear…

Mr. Van Dalinda: (Inaudible) sorry.

Mr. Donovan: …that’s O.K. we hear all the Public Hearings first then when the Public Hearings are opened or closed rather the Board generally takes a short adjournment to confer with me if any legal issues and then they’ll come back and vote. So don’t go home yet.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Thank you.    

(Time Noted – 7:33 PM)
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(103-3-5) R-2

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Sharon Hokanson Van Dalinda. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the application.

Mr. Manley: I'll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Donovan: Now you can go.

Mr. Van Dalinda: Can I start building?

Ms. Gennarelli: No, you need to obtain your Building Permit first.
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(79-3-20) R-1 / O

Applicant is seeking an area variance for not more than one freestanding sign, which may not be located closer than 15 feet from any street line.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant M & T Bank.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Please state your name for the record.

Mr. Beichert: My name is Ozzie Beichert a…a…I am Chairman of Timely Signs in Kingston and we are the sign people for M & T Bank. Also in attendance we have representatives from M & T and the engineering and site plan people. 

Chairperson Cardone: Could you state the reason why you would need the second sign?

Mr. Beichert: Well if…if you look at the a…at the site, the original site had the sign in the very middle the way its set up now between the…there are handicap spaces in the spot where the sign used to be. One to the very south which is the primary one even though this says primary the one we’re requesting the variance for…its on the a…on the north end of the property just to let people know that they can turn in there and get into the bank.

Chairperson Cardone: You mean to turn in off of Chestnut.

Mr. Beichert: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is that access way going to be changed in any way? Is that going to be moved back or that’s going to remain the same? The entrance…right now there are two entrances off of Chestnut Lane. Will they remain the same? Yes? Just give your name please and the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you are going to use the microphone. It’s being recorded. 

Mr. Willingham: O.K. Sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Willingham: Andrew Willingham with David Clouser and Associates we’re the engineers. Each entrance will be slightly modified. It will be in the same location but the east one will be one-way out and the west one will be one-way in so…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Because as it is right now sometimes that…that entrance the one to the east can sometimes block the traffic on 9W…

Mr. Willingham: Right, that was…that was an issue that came up at the Planning Board. That’s the whole reason that a…that’s going to be one-way out so the people can’t sit there and block so that will be a no left turn there.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. O.K. Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: You said Willingham?

Mr. Willingham: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: What’s your part of this…you said with the Clouser Engineers? 

Mr. Willingham: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Are you an engineer? 

Mr. Willingham: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. You sir said that you’re from the sign company and that there’s other representatives from the bank here as well?

Mr. Beichert: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Could identify them and what their role is?

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you get closer to the microphone please? It comes off if you need to take it off.

Mr. Beichert: I have Terry Allred who is the Facilities Manager for a…M & T Bank is with me. Sam Liebman from the architecture firm.

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Maher: What happened to the existing community sign that’s there?

Mr. Beichert: What happened to the what?

Mr. Maher: There was an existing community sign that’s been on the property for years now that hangs there I believe that advertises different functions for the area.

Chairperson Cardone: On the south end of the property.

Mr. Beichert: It’s going to a…it’s going to be removed because it’s in the D.O.T. right of way and it probably shouldn’t have been there in the first place. The D.O.T. is going to have it removed.  

Chairperson Cardone: And how far from the roadway would these signs be placed?

Mr. Willingham: Thirty-five feet to the right of way is setback of 30-feet from the edge of pavement and then its another six feet to the sign so it’ll be…the edge of the sign will be thirty-six feet from the road.

Mr. Willingham: On both…on both of them.

Mr. Manley: What guidelines are you using for the sign setbacks? Are you using the State guidelines?  

Mr. Willingham: The a…the Town has that fifteen foot from the…the…I forgot what they call it…the street line or something like that so that…that’s what we’re going by.

Mr. Manley: O.K. because 9W is a U.S. 9W which is a Federal roadway. Correct?  

Mr. Willingham: It’s a State…State road.

Mr. Manley: It is not it is a Federal roadway.

Mr. Willingham: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Have you looked into that to determine whether or not there will be any Federal Regulations that would or would not permit you to put a sign that close to the roadway being that it is a Federal Highway?

Mr. Willingham: We have…we haven’t looked into that to see if there’s any additional regulations, Federal Regulations on the distance to the road.

Mr. Manley: I think that’s something that we would need to get some clarification on if we were or were not going to approve the variance. Wouldn’t you think that might be something that’s important? 

Mr. Willingham: I guess, I…I…I think that is important but it…but it as far as I know it’s a State road, it’s a New York State road.

(Inaudible audience member)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Please identify yourself for the record and speak into the microphone.

Mr. Liebman: Sam Liebman the architect. We have been working with the traffic consultant from the Town and he certifies that as being a State road not a Federal unless you know something that they don’t know. It’s your Town traffic consultant.

Mr. Hughes: That happens more than you’d believe sir. Mr. Manley is correct. 

Mr. Liebman: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: That is a Federal Highway that goes from Fort Lee to... 

Mr. Liebman: If that’s a Federal…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me if you are going to speak, speak into the microphone.

Mr. Liebman: If it is a Federal Highway then it is mapped wrong because it says New York State, NYS before the letter of the highway.

Mr. Hughes: It says NYSDOT who maintains it but it goes from Fort Lee, New Jersey to Montreal…

Mr. Liebman: O.K. so then we have to change the…

Mr. Hughes: The right of way there is not a fifty footer by the way. 

Mr. Liebman: What is it?

Mr. Hughes: It’s a seventy-two footer.

Mr. Liebman: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: And the reason they did that was for the further expansion. That’s why it goes from four lanes to two lanes…

Mr. Liebman: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …to four lanes to two lanes.

Mr. Liebman: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So they’ve been wrong in the past and we’ll look forward to them being wrong in the future…

Mr. Liebman: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: …that’s why we’re here.

Mr. Liebman: O.K. great.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Manley you are right. And there’s a couple of things here, you’re description about where that sign is going to be from the edge of the road, are you using the survey map that you are providing here to measure from or are you measuring from the center line of the State (Federal) highway.

Mr. Willingham: Measuring from the edge of pavement is the distances I was giving you. 

Mr. Hughes: So now how did we go from thirty-six feet to six feet? How big is that sign?

Mr. Willingham: The edge of the sign is…

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you get a little closer?

Mr. Willingham: The sign will be six feet from the property line the property line separating the property and the D.O.T. right of way. Then there’s an additional thirty feet from the property line, the front property line of M & T to the edge of pavement.

Mr. Hughes: So is this a seven column pylon sign? Is it a field goal, two legged sign?

Mr. Willingham: There’s two different ones but there’s a…this would be the one…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you need to take the microphone with you. Speak into the microphone please. 

Mr. Hughes: All right we have these in our package I just wanted to make sure…you’re description of where this thing is going to be why is only six feet from that Federal Highway?

Mr. Willingham: It’s six feet from the property line.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe if you could…maybe you’ll see why I’m confused…can you come here and take a look at this please and if the Board Members could follow on sheet EX-1 you’ll see at the front part of the property line on 9W these ears which appear to be inside the property line and the rest of it out in the Federal D.O.T.

Mr. Willingham: O.K. I got…I see why you’re confused.

Mr. Hughes: Where’s the…?

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Mr. McKelvey: Use the mic.

Chairperson Cardone: There’s one right in back of you. Just take it off the stand. 

Mr. Willingham: O.K. plan EX-1 is the existing conditions. That’s what there today. There’s actually parking out in the D.O.T.  right of way. Parking exists out in the D.O.T. right of way. We’re actually removing that parking and pushing the parking back at least twelve feet from where it is now. So the whole parking lot is being pushed back so its out of the right of way. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you refer us to the second print?

Mr. Willingham: The second print SP-1 (ALT) is what is being proposed and it shows the one sign at the corner which is the smaller sign with the stone wall at the base and a proposed stone wall all across the front with landscaping and then the pedestal…I guess you’re calling that a pedestal sign or a…a…monument sign at the main entrance…

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Use the microphone please…because it’s being recorded. 

Mr. Beichert: The main entrance is simply called a pylon sign, it’s a vertical pylon sign; the sign at the north entrance would be considered a monument sign.

Mr. Hughes: And these dimensions?

Mr. Beichert: That’s the pylon sign.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Maher: I have one question. Who…who actually prepared the application?

Mr. Willingham: I did.

Mr. Maher: O.K. Do you have a copy of it? Or you can read mine actually. On page two, I guess is what I’m confused about here, because it says that the free standing sign each approximately six feet from the street line so is that inaccurate or…?

Mr. Willingham: The street line as we understood means not that pavement but the right of way.

Mr. Maher: That’s what I’m talking and that’s from the property line.

Mr. Willingham: It’s not six feet from the street it’s six feet from the pavement. It’s 36 feet.

Mr. Maher: I just want to clarify that the street line technically the street line you have written here and the property line are one and the same.

Mr. Willingham: Correct.

Mr. Maher: On the 9W side.

Mr. Willingham: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: What was the final resolution from the traffic consultant?

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry Ron…

Chairperson Cardone: The microphone.

Mr. Hughes: What was the final resolution from the traffic consultant about having that double entrance there from 9W and Chestnut Lane and another one so close in proximity?

Mr. Willingham: The one on 9W is basically remaining unchanged. It’s staying there.

Mr. Hughes: In the same location…

Mr. Willingham: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: …the same curb cut?     

Mr. Willingham: Yup. Ah no there’s going to be a new curb cut. I mean a new curb cut on the…on the 9W entrance. The two entrances on Chestnut are both…they were both…a both in and out now they’re going to…one…one’s going to be one-way in, the other one is going to be one-way out to help the traffic situation in that area. So there’s…there’s…

Mr. Hughes: So the one up the hill is going to be in?

Mr. Willingham: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: The one on the bottom out and then the two coming in and out of the other one.

Mr. Willingham: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Where is the curb cut being moved to?


Mr. Willingham: A…on which side on 9W?

Mr. Hughes: On the main entrance one.

Mr. Willingham: It’s the same location its just going to be new curbs.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: The out is no left turn though? Right?

Mr. Willingham: Yes. No left turn and no left turn in off of Chestnut so they can’t back it up out onto 9W anymore. 

Mr. Hughes: Signage in all locations especially on controlling the property (inaudible)?   

Mr. Willingham: Signs all over the place.

Mr. Maher: So on the left turn off Chestnut that should be by signage not by realigning the entrance?

Mr. Willingham: Yes there’s actually signage and channelization so there’s going to be curbs and signage to direct them. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, would you please go to the microphone and state your name.

Ms. Hughes: I’m Nancy Hughes, I have a house that is on Dogwood Lane though in the winter I do see the bank with all its glory, lights and my concern is…

Chairperson Cardone: The lighting.

Ms. Hughes: …the lighting. Are these lights going to be on 24 hours a day? Do they shut down after banking hours? How high are the lights? I don’t have any specs that your have a…I just have some concerns. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Willingham: They’re a…currently the light…the lights that are there are not the good lighting as far as the atmosphere, they’re kind of up. The new lights will be downcast and shielded so looking from the side you won’t be able to see any light a…there will be 20-foot poles, I think that there about 20-foot poles now a…but its all…its basically good lighting, good lighting as far as not casting glare on the neighbors. The minimum amount of lighting that’s needed to provide security on the site so it really should…its much better lights than are there now as far as what you’re going to see.

Ms. Hughes: And will they be illuminated 24-hours a day or do they go down after hours?

Mr. Willingham: I believe, I don’t know what their schedule is as far as turning certain ones off but I know that…that…that ATM is 24-hours so that would be some lighting around the ATM a…the parking lot lining they may be turned down to certain levels but its at…its at the minimum levels really needed to provide the security at nighttime.

Ms. Hughes: And the new sign that’s going to be closest to Chestnut Lane how high is that sign?

Mr. Willingham: That’s actually the much smaller sign and its…it should be pretty nice, its going to match the stonewall across the front, the fieldstone…

Ms. Hughes: I don’t care if it’s nice. I just don’t want the light shining in my backyard.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Has that issue been discussed with the Planning Board? The lighting issue or not at this point?

Mr. Willingham: Yeah, they got a whole sheet that was the lighting plan. They reviewed that. It was approved by the Planning Board.

Chairperson Cardone: But there was no Public Hearing? Is that correct?

Mr. Willingham: That’s correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Will there be?

Mr. Willingham: It’s possible. They haven’t got a…architectural review or an approval yet. It’s possible that they will set one for that. I don’t know what their plan is on that.

Ms. Hughes: And could I have a spec of the size of the lights?

Chairperson Cardone: We don’t have that. That’s really…that’s not an issue that they came to us for but that is an issue that the Planning Board would be discussing.

Ms. Hughes: And will I be notified of that?

Chairperson Cardone: Only if they have a Public Hearing and I don’t know the answer to that.  

Ms. Hughes: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Jerry (Canfield) do you have any idea? No?

Mr. McKelvey: Right now they waived the Public Hearing, right?

Mr. Willingham: For a site plan. 

Mr. McKelvey: I see it for a site plan.

Mr. Willingham: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: You can go on-line and read the minutes of the two meetings. One of them was March 3, 2011 and the other one was November 4, 2010. The 20-foot down casters have been knocked down to 15-footers and there’s some other details maybe your architect or somebody is more well attuned to it than you are. The minutes are on-line and they are available. That’s March 3rd and November 4, 2010.

Mr. Manley: The County had a concern as well. I think they did not receive a copy of the lighting plan and therefore when we received our a…input from the County a…that was one of the things that they noted to our Board was that they had not received the lighting plan at that point and was not able to comment with respect to the project.

Chairperson Cardone: This would be a good time for me to read that report. O.K. this is the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. The Planning Department has reviewed the submitted materials regarding the appeal for an area variance. While the Zoning Board of Appeals must weigh the local issues in balancing the needs of the applicant with the potential impacts on the surrounding area it does not appear that Intermunicipal or Countywide impacts would result if the Board finds that granting relief is warranted in this matter. We note that the plan set submitted to this office does not include a lighting plan; we advise the Town to ensure that the proposed internally lit signs do not shed light onto either Chestnut Lane or Route 9W in such a way as to cause a safety or traffic hazard. So that has been noted and the Planning Board would be aware of that.

Mr. Beichert: Just a…just so that you know the…the signs that a…that are proposed for here are internally illuminated they do not shine out. They are just simply illuminated from within and only they’ll be basically only the lettering is illuminated. 

Mr. Hughes: What do you have an acrylic diffuser over those? Something of that nature?

Mr. Beichert: No we have a dark background with white lettering. When you say an acrylic diffuser its…it’s an acrylic sign face it does not emit any light out.

Mr. Hughes: It just holds the color?

Mr. Beichert: Right. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? Any other questions from the Board?  

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And if I could ask you to wait in the hallway and we’ll call you in shortly in the interest of time. And Mr. Canfield could remain please?  
(Time Noted – 7:54 PM)
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Applicant is seeking an area variance for not more than one freestanding sign, which may not be located closer than 15 feet from any street line.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of M & T Bank seeking an area variance for one freestanding sign…for more than one freestanding sign, which may not be located closer than 15 feet from any street line. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry if I…this actually is an Unlisted Action for the sign. That’s my mistake but I’m glad I caught it early enough. So we just need to vote to issue a Negative Declaration.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion for a Negative Dec.

Mr. Manley: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Now do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: Is this going to have a stonewall in front of it too?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry; it won’t pick up that far.

Mr. Donovan: Just for the record the applicant indicated the answer to the inquiry is yes. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: Well I think one of the concerns that I need to feel comfortable will be addressed is a…any light being diffused at all from the signage that could negatively impact a…any traffic or potentially a…any neighbors and I don’t believe that the County felt completely comfortable that they had an opportunity to review that. So that’s one area that I do have a little bit of concern with. A second area of concern just relates back to a…it did measure 35-feet from the centerline to where they are going to place the sign but its actually 6-feet from the property line and obviously concerns with respect to any type of widening of US 9W a…in the wintertime…

Mr. Donovan: If I could just for clarification, it was not 36-feet from centerline correct? It was 36-feet from edge of pavement?

(Inaudible audience member)

Mr. Manley: O.K. its 35-feet from the roadway edge?

Mr. Donovan: From the edge of pavement to the sign. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: But you still may have the concern, I just wanted to…

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. Maher: I…I have one additional question. On the…on the Disapproval Jerry, the note says shall not be more than one sign which is one issue and then not located closer than 15-feet. So in fact, are there two questions in hand?

Mr. Donovan: Two signs that will be 6-feet from the street line.

Mr. Maher: O.K. so there’s…because I mean my question was that there’s…

Mr. Donovan: And there’s one extra sign.

Mr. Maher: The variance requested was only a…for two freestanding signs on the Code Compliance…on…

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s an affirmative from Mr. Canfield. He doesn’t have his microphone. And he said two signs.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have the ability to move those signs further from the right of way?

Mr. Willingham: No I would have push the whole site all the way back and there’s a hill there so its…

Mr. Hughes: At the sign location?

Mr. Willingham: Yeah, because the signs are already right up against the a…parking entrance area so they couldn’t…they can’t really go…they can’t go into the parking lot.

Mr. Hughes: Suppose where the sign was you made a protrusion into where the parking area was for the signs only? You’re…you’re talking six feet from that Federal Highway…Mr. Sign-man. 

Mr. Beichert: I…I understand what you’re saying. When you go into the property then you’re interfering with the ingress and the egress going in and out. When you say 6-feet we are 6-feet from the property line…

Mr. Hughes: Not from the road line? What is he saying?

Mr. Beichert: I mean we are fifty feet away from the road from the centerline of the road. It…it…it…I mean it’s a…the one sign that’s there now exists that…that belongs to M & T exists in the same plane that we’re putting it in. There…there’s a public announcement sign that nobody is sure how it got there, who put it there but that also is in the same plane. The snowplows haven’t hit that and…and a…to my knowledge there are no plans to a…a widen Route 9W at this point and even if the did they could…there’s still room for at least one more lane on each side.

Mr. Donovan: I think we might have a definitional issue because they talk about street line and I think its because the way our Code defines street line which is the dividing line between a lot and a street. So under our definition anything beyond their lot the street…beyond their lot the street starts even though the edge of pavement is still 36-feet away from the sign.

Mr. Beichert: Yeah, it’s a way whole lot back. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you pass that microphone over?

Mr. Willingham: I made the same mistake over and over, sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: Next time you come it will be easier for you. 

Mr. Willingham: Yeah. There is actually a shoulder two, about a five foot shoulder so if you’re in your car on 9W the sign will be 41-feet from the side of your car…to the…to the side, to the closest parking sign.

Mr. Maher: So you’re including a 5-foot unpaved area as shoulder.

Mr. Willingham: It’s a paved shoulder but the…there’s the white line and the paved shoulder so…

Mr. Manley: I just want to make note that you’re permitted it show here 400.5 sq. ft. of signage according to your plans. You are utilizing 286. Would it not perhaps, obviously you’re looking at whether or not the Zoning Board wants to grant or not grant a variance part of it is can you…can you do something differently that would meet your objective and that would be why not do something a little bit different with the building with regard to signage if you need visibility and you need people to see M & T Bank? You know, what about signage on the building itself as opposed to, you know, having two signs closer to the roadway and I just make note of that here.

Mr. Beichert: But that…that’s a sign question. A…its also a marketing question a…signs on the building the way this building is designed the building sits back even further from what we’re talking about to get recognition when you want people to turn in and out of the building. First off we have two needs, one is to tell you where that bank is, where the building is, second is to tell you where the entrances are and the exits obviously and the third is that to make it safe because when you see a building sign remember you’re in the middle of the property. The entrances and the exits are north and south of that. It makes it very difficult when you see that sign on the front of the building that’s facing this way it creates a somewhat unsafe condition. Everybody else on Route 9W has signs and in…in almost any business will tell you that the best place to put a sign is at the entrance to the building. And that that’s why you denote the entrance and its…it’s a safety issue also that that’s where the entrance is…here.

Mr. Manley: O.K. and I understand it’s an identification issue but how long has M & T Bank been at that location? Fair to say twenty years? 

Chairperson Cardone: Not as M & T Bank.

Mr. Beichert: Not as M & T Bank, no. I don’t know how many years. I…I…I don’t know the answer to that question.

Chairperson Cardone: The building itself has been there more than forty years.

Mr. Hughes: The First National Bank of Highland. 1959.

Mr. Beichert: And keep in mind this is a new building. This is a whole new ballgame here so…

Mr. Maher: And you are pushing the building further from the…from the front line, correct? 

Mr. Willingham: Right it’s going back about five feet or so.

Mr. Maher: Eleven foot, three inches actually.

Mr. Willingham: Is it? 

Mr. Maher: Yeah.

Mr. Willingham: Eleven feet back from the original? 

Mr. Maher: Yeah, forty-eight nine to sixty. 

Mr. Willingham: A…O.K. its…its…

Mr. Hughes: Your drawings.

Mr. Willingham: O.K. sixty feet.

Mr. Maher: In actuality its sixty foot to the canopy over the front walk. In actuality the building is a little back further.

Mr. Willingham: Yeah really everything is getting pushed back, the parking, building, sign. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Drake: I have one other question. Is there any way that we could confer our…the County Planning Boards issue of lighting to the Planning Board so that they are aware of the issue raised by the County Planning Board? I don’t know if they get our notice.

Mr. Donovan: Are you…are you done with the Planning Board? Did they give you a conditional site plan approval?

Mr. Willingham: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: A…what’s the…you said…I’m sorry I don’t recall, you said something about the lighting before. Do you need to do something further with lighting or are you done as far as the Planning Board is concerned? 

Mr. Willingham: We’re done. They…they approved the lighting plan, gave conditional approval on the site plan.  

Mr. Hughes: Pending the County’s approval and our…?

Mr. Donovan: But they didn’t have…they didn’t have both of these signs, correct?

Mr. Willingham: Right, we do have to go back to get an amended approval for the second sign, amended site plan approval if we obtain the variance from the Zoning Board.

Mr. Donovan: So does that…that would be our opportunity to indicate and…Jerry, do we have a separate and distinct Lighting Ordinance, Lighting Code in the Ordinance? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, there is illumination ordinance, which this plan did also, a…they did submit lighting throws and everything that was reviewed by the Planning Board. A…and I believe also and I believe you need to go back for ARB? Is that correct? Architectural Review Board.

Mr. Willingham: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: So they are not completely done with the Planning Board yet.

Mr. Donovan: So then the answer to your question Brenda is yes. They need an amended site plan approval for...for this additional sign that we can indicate in our decision if the Board is so inclined that they need to comply with the lighting provisions of the Zoning Ordinance relative to the light emitted from these signs.

Mr. Hughes: So to be clear they knocked the 20-footers down to 15-footers down casters and they did all the other stuff with a preliminary approval with one sign?

Mr. Donovan: Well...

Mr. Hughes: Could you read the minutes?

Mr. Willingham: Right, the…the poles are still 20-feet they didn’t get knocked get down to 15. There was a recommendation to do that but they were approved at 20-feet and yes, it’s the…the…

Mr. Hughes: So they’re staying at 20-feet?

Mr. Willingham: The 20-foot poles, which meets the Town requirement for…for pole height.

Mr. Hughes: And you only have one residential neighbor there up on the hill, north. So is that 20-feet probably going to be below that house there?

Mr. Willingham: That’s about 90-feet up there actually. It’s a ways up. There’s a tree…pretty thick tree line through there.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion for approval with the a…condition that the lighting issue is referred to the Planning Board. 

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Mr. Hughes: Discussion? Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: You have to ask the Chair if you can have discussion on it.

Mr. Hughes: Well its…

Chairperson Cardone: Go right ahead. 

Mr. Hughes: I waited for the second on the motion for the discussion but yes, I should have asked for Grace, on many levels. Are we entertaining something here that could be considered precedential in its effect by its an additional sign and my question is being that there has been more than one sign on the property does that afford any benefit to the applicant that we should consider? 

Mr. Donovan: Well let me answer both your questions. First thing, as I always say, everything that you do establishes a precedent to some degree or another. So the answer to that is yes. Regarding whether there’s…I think your question is is there a pre-existing non-conforming condition that we allow to continue?

Mr. Hughes: Its something to consider.

Mr. Donovan: I think that my understanding of the signs that are being…the new signs that are replacing the existing signs are in a different location, different size, different type to the extent that its not a continuation of a pre-existing non-conforming.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so once you knock the one down you lose it?

Mr. Donovan: Yes. I say yes, I mean if you knock one down and it’s a, you know…15 sq. ft. and you put up basically the same sign except newer at 15 sq. ft. and you do it within a one year period then its…you know, you’re probably continuation of a pre-existing non-conforming use. We have signs the view of which are going to be different and the location of which are going to be different.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Can I do the vote?

Chairperson Cardone: Is that the end of the discussion?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I’m satisfied with the answers.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Brenda is the first. Ruth is the second.  

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:49 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MARCH 24, 2011

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 8:49 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I know that by now everyone has everyone had a chance to read the January minutes. Are there any additions, deletions, corrections?

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to approve the minutes?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other business?

Ms. Drake: Don’t we have an application request for an extension?

Mr. Maher: There was a note from a lawyer, no?

Ms. Drake: JJH of Walden.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, from Finkelstein’s office.

Mr. Maher: Yeah it should have been for a…

Mr. Hughes: It was about the Mom’s Restaurant.

Mr. Maher: Joe Bonura’s application.   

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, JJ & H of Walden?

Mr. Maher: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: This is to report to the Zoning Board that per its decision dated December 23, 2010, filed January 28, 2011, the Planning Board granted site plan approval on March 3rd subject to several conditions which the applicant is diligently fulfilling. Accordingly the applicant requests that the time period within which the Planning Board application is processed and the conditions are being met not be included within the initial six-month limitation of Section 185-55-D. Enclosed is a copy of the site plan approval resolution for your records. I would defer that to…to Dave. 

Mr. Hughes: Is that undersigned by Joe Rones?  

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Ms. Drake: I was thinking they were asking for a six-month extension.

Mr. Hughes: It’s the anticipated…

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Hughes: …that end…that extension. That’s what I got out of it anyway.

Mr. Donovan: No.

Chairperson Cardone: Wouldn’t they already be covered?

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, that’s a standard condition in our approval.

Chairperson Cardone: Yeah.

Ms. Drake: O.K. so there is nothing we need to do on that?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. I just didn’t want to miss it. 

Chairperson Cardone: That was my understanding when I read it that they were already covered.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other business? O.K. a motion to adjourn the meeting?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Everyone in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.
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